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;N TEE Wi-TTE17 STATES DISTRICT COUR'I 
FOR TMJi NC&TE;ERI\I DISTECICT CF OHIO 

Ragaie Kolta, M . D . ,  

Plaintiff, 

vs . 

Paul Revere Insurance Co., 

Defezdant . 

; 

1 
\ 

) Case No 

) 

\ 
I 

i 

93 CV174 9 

Deposition of Martin Resnick, M O D ,  I a witness 

herein, called on behaif of the defendant. for oral 

examination pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, taken before Barbara J. Strahler, Court 

Reporter and Notary Public in and for the State of Ohio, 

at University Hospitals of Cleveland, 2074 Abington Road, 

Cleveland, Ohio, 44106, on Tuesday, July 11, 1995, 

commencing at 9:i2 a.m. 
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Witness: 

Martin Resnick, M.D. 

by Ms. Johnson 
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YTii?”Th- f lESKICK,  M. D. 

3f lawful age, bein? ~ ~ . T S L  duly sworn, as hereinafter 

certified, was examined and testified as follows: 

3R3SS - ~ X ~ I X A T I O ~  

By wis, h_Tohnson: 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Dr. Resnick, I ~ U S C  mer; you a few minuEes ago My , 

name is Gerry :j;ionnssn, and I represent Paul Revere 

Life Insurance L’mgany ,, ! 

DocLor, has  your deposition been taken before? 

Noe for ehis. 

Not in this particular case, but you’ve been deposed. 

before? 

Yes. 

And you’re aware of the ground rules. If a question 

requires some clarification, you will let me know 

thaE? 

Yes  F 

And you unders=mo, Decause a court reporter 1,s 

caking down yo-dr responses, we need a verbal 

response? 

I understand. 

Doctor, you have treated Dr. Kolta. Is that 

correct? 

That‘s correct. 

And accordlng to your notes, the first time you saw 

FINCUP;I-MANCINI - - THE COURT REPORTERS 
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D r  KGlEZ was I+, 1999, 1s %hae correce7 

That is apprcx_macu-y ;?~?rrect, yes 

Was Dr. Koit, ~efexxe6 ca you?  

T o  the - -  see, I  don'^ have my notes from 1990 here, 

but to the best of my recollection, he was diagnosed 

with having cancer of the prostate and came to see 

me f o r  a second opinion regarding treatment, and 

subsequently wenE to Johns Hopkins to have his 

radical proscatectomy. And that was around 1990. 

Do you know h o w  31- Uqica came to seek a second 

opinion from ~ O L  speckflcaily? 

Juse - -  I assurnez, :USE b:; repucaeion. 1 have a 

fairly good jrepucac?_m. ir! the Cleveland area, and I 

see many paeienr,s abour, second opinions. 

And it's my understanding you saw Dr. Kolta that one 

time in 1990' 

That is correcc. 

And you indicated that Dr. Kolta elected to have a 

surgery done at Johns Hopkins? 

That is correct. 

Do you know why Dr. Kolta opted to go to Baltimore 

for the surgery? 

He w a s  very coneerne6 wich impotency at the Lime, 

and at that pine, r h e  Xopkins group had  he best 

reported resnl-cs :r maincaining poeency 

FINCUK-MAXCINI - -  THE COURT REPORTERS 
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Do you know Dr. Marshall? 

‘Yes 

Do you know him other than in a professional way? 

Well, we socialize, but most of it relates to 

! urological meetings and that kind of thing. So I 

3. There have been 3 .zoupJ.e or_her patiex?.rs, ehae have 

been treated at Johns Hopkins who I foilow, bue I 

can’t specifically remember if they were treated by 

Dr. Marshall or others at that institution. 

0 Doctor, I noticed that you have a file with you 

today. May I review that? 

A Sure 

Q Thank you,, Doccar- 

!Defendane*s Exhibit A 
marked for 
identificaeion, i 

Q Doctor, I ’ m  handing you whac’s been marked as 

Defendant’s Exhibie k and 1’11 ask whether you 

agree with me that z h a t  exhibit is a copy of your 

office notes from September 29th, 1992 through 

October 12th, 1993, along with a letter from you to 

Dr. Kolta as well, daLed November 5, 1993? 

A Yes. That is correct. 

Q And I just quickly reviewed your - -  the file t h a t  

j - 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

e 
A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

you ioroughr; zo zoday'c; deposieion, And it appeared 

to me chae after O c r o ~ e r  12th, 1993 you saw 13r 

Kolta on January 9 t h ,  1994; September 28ch, 1994 and 

March 24th, 1995? 

Also *June 15th, 1994. 

So you have seen Dr. Kolta four times beyond 

Defendant's A? 

That ' s correcc . 

1 would ask ax c ~ e  e1ici of the 3eposiLion if I could 

get a copy of c n ~ s e  faur  office noces? 

Sumre 

When did y o ~ l  plan r3 see Dr Kolta again'? 

Wnen I saw bin, OE  arch 2 4 e h r  my appcintrnene notes 

say six months. 

So sometime in September, you should be seeing him 

again? 

That's correct. 

Do you confer with Dr. Marshall periodically about 

Cr, Koilta? 

No " 

T)octor, I noticed ~n your file thar.  ehere are some 

handwritten notes on yellow sheets of paper. 

t h a c  - -  

That's correcc 

And those handwritten notes appear to follow the 

Is 

- -_ 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

F? 

a 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

typed version of your office notes. Is that 

correct? 

That is corrfcr rvZy r o u t i n e  is chat I usuaEy 

scribble some~hi-ncf- d o w f i  when I see rhe pacienc 

then afEer  che p a ~ r e n c  leaves the office, I‘ll 

diceate a f ~ r r m :  n o ~ e  

So your handwrrcter, noces are accaaliy wrir~en 

while the patienc is still in your office? 

Yes. 

A n d  is the purpose of the writing hand - -  or w r i  L 1 ng 

out notes while the patient is still in your office 

so that you will be able to record what y o ~ l  consider 

as significanc or material to the person’s 

condition? 

Right. It’s LD remind me what I want to say when I 

3rceaee a f o r m a l  -noze., 

Doctor, if we zar focds 91-1 your office note of 

September 29th :9?2 you indicated;, t b a c  Dr. Kolta 

was having problems with incontinence, scress 

incontinence? 

That‘s correct. 

Is that note a reflection of what Dr. Kolta reported 

to you? 

Yes. 

Does that note indicate any objective basis f o r  Dr. 

FINCUN-MANCINI - -  THE COURT REPORTERS 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

L 

Kolca' a reporting zf stress  incontinence^ 

Well, I just sa id  inconcinence. I didn'rs say stress 

incontinence. However, the note is based on 

patient's history. 

Is it your opinion that Dr. Kolta suffers from 

stress incontinence? 

Well, he suffers from incontinence. 

Your noces :gd;cace z h a z  'ne has stress-related 

problems witn regard EO urlne retenti-OR. Is char, 

earrece? 

MR 3A?L?5T'T : 8cress-relaeed, stress 

incontinence, is t h s . ~  wnat you're referencing? 

I'm asking you if your note reflects that you 

indicate - -  

I'm looking for the word stress. 

Line five. 

MR. BARRETT: Says stress-related 

problems. 

Right. I'm sorry. That's correct. 

MR. BARRETT: For the record, that 

says, has stress-relaKed problems, particulariy 

Loward the end ~f the day. Is that - -  

My questionR Doctor, IS does your nore indicate chat 

Dr. XoXta has seress-relaced problems with regard. to 

urine retention? 

FINCIJN-MATXCINI - -  THE COURT REPORTERS 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

I guess, just so we're sure in terms - -  when I'm 

talkin9 abour. scress-related problems, I'm talkins 1 
I 

LO h i s  inconeinence a n d  urinary - -  I'm not talking 

about a psychological stress. 

i 
! 

1 
I understand.. 

And I'm saying e h a r  be has stress-related 

inconeinence 

Did you conduct a ~ l y  $ragnostic resting EO deveisy: 

the level - -  c)r cc ciecermine the level of 

Dr. Kolta's incontinence? 

No. I did not do that. 

Would you agree that a patient's reporting of the 

number of pads that he uses on a daily basis would 

I 

be one way of rnoniEosring or determining that level? i 
I 

Thae's used, yes.. 

Now,  your office nore on September 29, it doesn't 

indicace the number of pads that Dr. Kolta was 

using, 1s ehar C Q r L ' e C e ' ~  

No, it does noe. 

Do you know h o w  many pads Dr. Kolta was using in 

1992? 

Best of my recollection - -  it's only my 

recollection - -  is somewhere - -  three, four pads a 

day, but that's not recorded, and I'm not sure of 

Chars. 

I 

I -- 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 

li 

A 

Q 

And your notes Qor,'r; indicate any objecr_lve 

quantification of urine leakage or the amount of 

urine leakage? 

No. 

Do you have a recollection as to - -  if we're looking 

at the spectrum of urine leakage, starting from 

perhaps a few drops all the way up to the bladder 

emptying complereiy, do you have a recollection as 

LO where Dr, Kolra woliid have fallen? 

Be was somewhere 21, che middle, Pecause he  was 

urinating, so he cii6 not have cornpiece incontinence, 

buE somewhere 1~ r,he middle, T don't know i f  I can 

be any more specif-c char! thaE. 

Do you have any recollectlon as to Dr. Kolta's 

frequency of need to urinate on a daily basis? 

As I remember, he has told me that he needs to 

urinate roughly every two hours. 

Was that true in September of 1992? 

I don't know ~ h a r ; .  I don't know that. 

Is it fair to say Khat your recoliectlon is that 

Dr. KoPta has bad EO urinate approximately every two 

hours far the length c f  rime thaiz yeu've been 

treating him? 

I believe that's correct 

There doesn't sEand out In your mind a time when 

FINZUN-MANCiNI - -  THE COURT REPORTERS 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

that level would have dropped or would have 

increased'? 

Not to my recc1lect;arL 

Dr, Kolta told you in September 1992 that as long as 

he was sit~clng or  sleeping, he d i d  noe have  any 

incontinence problems:: 

That's what it star;es. 

And his problems seem to really kick up at the end 

of the day. Is that correct? 

Or that and reiazed P,C activity. 

Do your notes reflect that Dr. Kolta reported he had 

incontinent problems when he was active? 

I don't know if thaE's in my notes. but it's 

certainly what I remember him telling me. And I 

think it went or: my subsequent notes. There was 

some discussaob; abour_ him - -  I just saw it a minute 

ago, When he was walKing, he had problems wich 

incontinence, so I would think chat's related to his 

activity. 

But in September of '92, you don't have any 

indication? 

No. The only - -  by inference, the fact that he says 

he does okay when he's sitting or sleeping would 

imply - -  this is lust che way I do my notes - -  would 

imply ehae he has problems: when he's not doing those 
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Q 

A 

Q 
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Q 

A 

Q 

activities. 

And is it fair LO say that those problems increased 

towards the end of the day as opposed to the 

beginning or middie part of the day? 

That’s correct. And that‘s not uncommon in patients 

who have incontinence following a radical 

prostacectorny, cxaE tneir symptoms or manifesEations 

3f i~continenze c-efic EO geE worse as t h e  day goes 

on. 

And by tne ena af rne Aay sornecime after 5:aO or 

6:OO ln the ever.:k-tg - -  

I would probably put it a little earlier than that. 

Usually patienEs will - -  usually by 2:O O  or 3:OO in 

the afternoon will start to have problems. 

So for incontinent paLients, when you talk about the 

end of the day, you’re really referring to sometime 

in mid afternoon? 

That‘s correct. 

Doctor, you n o ~ e 6  Lhat Dr. Kolta was on partial 

disability in 3epEember 11392. Is that correct? I’m 

looking abouc zile sixt-? line down. 

Yes a 

For purposes of ehis deposieion, I‘m going to ask 

you to equate partial disability with residual 

disability. 

FINCUN-MANCINI - -  THE COURT REPORTERS 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

B 

Q 

I don‘t know - -  I mean, I can’t tell you what that 

specif icaiiy ~ ~ e a n s ,  T h i s  is probably s0rnethin.g he ~ 

cold me, and 1 can’E ileil you anyching more aboue I 

it, And : cap7 l z e i l  you right now Z donKe know rhe 

difference beeweerr partial disability. and residual 

disability. 

Would you agree that partial disabiliEy means 

something less than total disability? 

Yes. 

I‘m just going to ask you to accept, f o r  purposes of 

this deposition, that partial disability, which is 

less than cotal, equaees to residual disability 

under the Pau: Revere policy. 

Can you explain whae residual disability means? 

Yes e 

(Defendant’s Exhibits 
B & C marked for 
idenEification.) 

Doctor, I ’ m  handing you what has been labeled as 

Defendant’s Exhibits B and C, and I’m represenring 

to you that Exhibit B is Page 7 from Paul Revere‘s 

policy that they issued to Dr. Kolta. And Exhibit 

is Page 6 of that policy. I would ask you to look 

C 

at the definition of total disability on Page 6 an2 

residual disability on Page 7. 

MR. BARRETT: Total disability is 

-_ 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

R 

A 

Q 

right dowri here .  ~ 

And residual disab; l i r y ?  

I 

i 
i 
I 

Yes. That's ar the top of Page 7. 

Okay. 

And, Doctor, in order to save time, I'm really 
I 

focusing on a ( 1 )  of residual disability. 

Okay. 

Would you agree WLYI:  le rhaL with. regard EG t h e  

policy's defi~re~on sf cotal disability, which was 

ar. che botecrm ax ;age d ,  Local dlsab1lie.y means ~ k i a c  

an individual LCZ 1inabl.e EO perform the importaEr 

dueiea of his 3: ze1i occupation? 

MR. BARRETT: That's what it says. 

Right. That's what it says. 

And with regard to residual disability, an 

individual is unable to perform one or more of the 

important duties of his occupation? 

MR. BARRETT: I'm going to object to 

this, 

The - -  ie s r , a r E e d i  WiEh 3r. Resnick putKing in his 

note a commenr from Dr, Kolta that he's on partial 

Z E m  ~ Q ' C  ~ L J L E ~  s u r e  where you're going. 

I disabiliey, T,n.ere  as no determination made at Lnar; 

rime - -  I  don'^, chrnk - -  by Cr. Resnick. Unless 

you're challenging t h e  determination that he has 

actually made at that time, 1/11 just object for the 

I 

___ I 
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no opinion on that. So it just - -  a few words that 

he told me, and that's all. 

i 2 1  

I 

I 
51 

6 

7 

91 

l2 i 
13 j 

I 14 I 
15 j 

I 

record for r i o w  +nd Let you proceed to see where we I 

1 

21-e" You .nay 2e 3 ; s L ; i n ~  :he doctor some legal 

disability, ~ndica~rng ehae someone is u n a b l e  LO 

perform any of t h e  irrporeane duties of u;heir 

occupation, would you agree that by your noting t h a ~  ~ 

Dr. Kolta was on partial disability, it would 

naturally follow tnat he was able to perform some of 

the duties of his occupation? 

I didn't make a determination whether - -  I ' m  just 

saying what he told me. So I can't say anything 

more than ehat. Thac was not my ludgment that he 

was on partia; disability. It's just that he tald 
I 

me he was on parcad!. disability. What went into i 

rhae deeerminaEiari, w k a ~  he was able tc perforn 

18 
I 

19 j 
I 
! 

20 ! 
I 

21. i Q 
22 1 
2 3  I k 

24 Q Rnd when you no~ed chac he was on partial 

Do you have - -  did you have an understanding, then, 

that Dr. Kolta was working? 

I had an understanding that he was working. 

I 

1 
1 

disability, did C h a r ;  indicate to you that he was 

I 
I 

125 i 
I 

I __ -A 
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A 
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w 
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receiving some cvpe of benefit while he was sei11 

able to work? 

I don‘t know. 

What was your understanding in terms of Dr. Kolta‘s 

capability of performing his duties as an 

anesthesioloyise irt September of ‘92? 

I cacy r remember specrficaliy remember, 

September of ‘92. I can give you a general 

impression, ~ u s c  3ver r i l e  course of my care for him, 

but I can‘r mecrf?-ca-ly c a l ~  aDouc - -  Decaluse . 

just don ‘ t remember. 

So you don’t know exaccly what Dr. Kolta was able to 

do and what he was noe able to do in 

September of ’92? 

No. 

This general recolleccion, that I would like you to 

share with me in a minute, is that based on your 

impressions of Dr. Koir_a and treatment of Dr. Koita 

aver ehe i a s E  chree years? 

Correct. 

What IS your g i e ~ e r a l  {JDderstanding of Dr, Rolta’s 

abilities and h r s  inaDilities? 

Well, he did try to work and fulfill his 

responsibilities as an anesthesiologist, but because 

of the problems related to urinary control with his 

._ __ 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

getting wer ~ -mv;nc zc; voi-d frequenciy, odor, 

embarrassmenc ~ocs-ai concerns he was preoccupied 

with. clnese c c ~ n c e r n ~  ;c rha t  he was - -  ne did noc 

feel that he could! funccion as an anesehesiologlat 

And these problems of geering wee, r_he odor, che 

embarrassment and preoccupatlon, they’re all faccors  

that Dr. Kolta merely mentioned to you? 

Yeah. He told me about them. Yes. 

Other than the pacient‘s history to you and 

complaining of these problems that we just 

mentioned, do  yo^ have any objective or diagnostic 

basis to deee.crrrine w h a ~  Dr. K O ~ K S  was able to do and 

not able to do with regard to work responsibilities? 

No. I‘m not at? anesthesiologist. L can‘t comment 

on that, 

But as a trearing urologist, do you have any 

diagnostic or objective basis? 

I think from what he told me. And as I said, I‘ve 

known him over several years. He is unable to 

function as an anesthesiologist, based on our 

conversations and - -  

And that’s based solely on the history that he’s 

reporting to YOU? 

Righc. I know he’s incontinent. I‘ve examined him. 

He’s wet when I examlned him, so I know he‘s 

.__ 
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Q 
A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

3 

But in terms - -  Tet's put aside 

Dr. Kolta is incontinent, if we 

for purposes of this deposition 

incontinent. It's based on - -  I've not seen nim in 

the workplace, if Khat's what you mean. 

the fact that 

agree on that basis, 

What I'm trying to 

get at is do  yo^ nave any objective or diagnostic 

basis to determine his level of incontlnence and its 

impact an his milicy 31 inability ca func~ion as ar 

anesthesioiogrse? 

Other than w h a r  heas eel6 me? 

Other than patient history. 

No. 

Okay. Did Dr. Kolta tell you he range of duties 

that he was able to accomplish in September of 

Not that I can remember. 

Did Dr. Kolta report to you that in September of '92 

he had to work a shorter workday? 

In. my recollecElon, i+, seems to be, but I really 

canYt be sure of chat. And it really relates more 

of - -  my dealings with him over the past few years 

than September of " 2 ,  

So is it fair to say that in September of '92, you 

don't have any particular recollection, one way or 

the other, with regard to Dr. Kolta's work as an 

anesthesiologist? 

'92? 

-- 
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Nc That' 8 COYZ€?(71_ 

Dr Kolta c o l d  me ir! h i s  deposi%ion c h a r  LD 

September of ' 9 2  ne was working ae Lora;rt d o s p r ~ a l  

and working essene;al ly  from about 7:OC 15 'che 

morning until aboue 5:OO or 0 : O O  at night, Were you 

aware that those were the hours that Dr. Kolta was 

keeping? 

No. 

Did he reporc LO you having any problems keeping 

ehat schedule? 

No. The - -  as I said, my comments relate to not 

September of '92, buc the general terms, and he was 

having problems working, I know, because of the 

incontinence and some of the things wefve already 

discussed. ~3tlc again, i can#t give you the 

specifies of when 7 ~ecame aware of that, 

specifically i~ Seprember of '32. 

Did you have any discussions with Dr. Kolta about 

himself quitting work or resigning from work? 

Again, I believe he told me somewhere in this 

interval that he was unable to work. When that was 

and what he did about it, I do not know. 

You next saw Dr. Molta in December '92, and at that 

pine, your nore indicates that he, Dr. Kolta, is 

unable to work. Is that correct? 
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That’ s correcc 

And is that statement a reflection of the history 

that Dr. Kolta reported to you? 

Yes. 

You indicate t h a t  Dr Yolta was totally disabled in 

December sf 5 %  because of persis-cent incontinence? 

That' s correcc 

Do you undersrand, based on your conversatrons WJ-L,”~ 

Drs KoXta, L P Z K  t3t2i “iisabi1ir.y rneanr. J -nab i i i cy  zc 

perform any 3: ~ I L S  W G Z K  z?uz~-es?  

I can‘t give you ~ h e  legai definizion, obviously, 

but this is grobabiy what he told me. I assumed 

that he was unable to work, period. 

And che basis for the total disability is, again, 

Dr. Kolta’s report to you that he has persistent 

incontinence? 

Correct. 

9y December of ‘ 9 2  when you‘re aware that Dr. Kolta 

is nor. working, do y o u  know how many pads he was 

UsLKg on SI dar ly  bzs;;? 

Noe specif:calAy, As 1 ~ o l a  you before, I believe 

it w a s  three zc f s u r  3ut I can’t remember. IL‘S 

obviously not recorded. 

Ts it fair to say that it’s your recollection that 

Dr. Kolta used and uses three to four pads a day and 

-___-- __ - 
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has pretty much ~~emz;iicd zonsrstenr. with that from 

the time you f1rs.c sah him in September of ‘92 

ehrough rhe UI’F-,S~X:C~~ 

Yes. I chink that‘s cujcreee 

With regard to ehe amount of Dr, Ko1ta”s 

incontinence, do you have any underscanding as to 

where he falls in that spectrum? In other words, 

did he report to you that his pads are very wet or 

slightly wet, or do you have any recollection or 

underseanding? 

Nc * 

And rhac would DE CZ-LC of September of ’92 through 

the current eime? 

Yeah, I mean, zb.eypxe wec, but the degree of how 

wer they are, I really can’t tell you. 

And you know rhar. chey‘re wet, because that‘s what 

Dr. Kolta t o l d  you? 

That is. And when I‘ve examined him in the office, 

I‘ve noeiced he’s wet. 

Is he very weC, silghriy wet? 

I don‘t know how to quantitate it. They’re not 

dripping, soaked, if that’s what you mean. But 

they‘re more than damp, so they’re somewhere in the 

middle I 

On how many o c c a s ~ ~ o n s  during the time that you have 

_ _ _  _ _  - 
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seen Dr. Kclta has his pad been more than slightly 1 
I 

damp? I 

A 

Q 

A. 

0 

I can't remember. 

When you do examine Dr. Kolta, is it your 

recollection that his pad is always at least 
I 

slightly damp:; j I 
- -  That s my recoiiecc:-orL 

And 1 think you r o i d  we oefore thaL throughout chis 

zhree-year perrocl  ~ n a c  we '  r e  di-scussing,  char 12, 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

92 through ' 9 S p  y 3 a  -maerstanding is c n a t  

Dr. Kolta's need to urinate is about every twc 

hours? 

Correct. 

In December, when Dr. Kolta came to see you, did he 

report any particular history that would have caused 

his December '92 checkup to be different or in 

contrast to 121s SeDzernber '92 checkup? 

I can't remember, base6 an my notes. 

WelL, you don' T have any reporr. of any increased 

A No. I 

Q And you don'r_ nave any report of an increase in the 1 
~ 

I 

number of pads? 

A Correct. 

Q And you don't nave any report of an increase in the 

-_ .J 
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Fi 

amount of incGTz;nence7 By amoune I'm calking 

aboue the c o x i z ~ ~ r ,  z r  ,he pads 

No. I undersrana :ozx ect 

Is it fair to say char_ the terrri persistent 

incontinence was Dr. Kolta's term? That is what he 

reported to you? 

Yeah. That's base6 cn history. 

You had Dr. Kolta placed on Ephedrlne? 

Ephedrine, cerrecl;. 

And ne reported to you that he was not having muzh 

luck with y3naz. - IS :cat cs~-rect? 

That's correct. 

And at che same cLme he was on E?,~ex?  

CorreCL 

And had some minimal response tc zhaz? 

That's what it says, right. 

Since he was reporting either no favorable response 

or minimal favorable response to his medications, 

did you think about changing those? 

Generally, if they're not responding, we will 

usually disconclnue the medication. 

B i d  you 60 tnnac :n Dr Kolta's case? Do you know? 

I assume so, because subsequenE notes do not state 

Khat he's OR -he medication. But I - -  because 

usually - -  I zan'f: say i z ! ~  100 percent, but usually 

.- -_ 
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if a patient is mainrained on medication, you know, 

I continue to note thar,. But sometimes it slips 

through. But I would make the assumption - -  and I 

can't remember 2e's not  on any medication, we'll 

say, as of April 1393 

Excuse i r e  A p r l -  2f '93 says continues to be 

inconcinene w;:k ~,:~:-rnzj. effect with. Encex sc I 

assume he's RE 1: =her, Z n  July 0- '33 1 would, 

again, make ITX assumpeion thar. ne's D r o D a s ? a y  D O E  

Buc, as I sal6 may have siippe6 r h r c u y k ~ .  They 

may not have recordec it. 

So what you're telling me is that perhaps at times 

D r .  Kolta was OR Entex, and then orher times he was 

not taking it? 

He probably had. a trial of it, and he was certainly 

on it f o r  a while, but I believe it's been 

dfscontinueG. But specifically when, I don't know. 

What was the purpose of these medications? 

They are W ~ ~ K ~ S  :alieG atimulaelng agenes, ana chey 

zena to ~ t i m . - ~ a r , t =  Y ~ E  ;zr+incce'r, externa, xz-ina, 

sphincter, co riels x: .nary  control. 

And by Dr. Kc1r.a.s reporeing, chey weren'c aoing a 

very good j o b  f o r  him? 

Correct. 

Were there other medications that you could have 

'Y 

-- 
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seEeceed EO - -  

The other cgrpes GE nscicarions zhae are used TC; 

relax Ehe ur.rnary 3ladder. which are - -  are zallea 

anticholinergic a - ~ - t - ~ - c - h - o - l - i - n - e - r - g - i - c ,  

agents, I will use  rhose if a patiene is hav;ng 

incontinence due to what we call inhibited bladder 

constructions o r  Lrr2tabi.e bladder. And based on 

the history, I did not think that was the situation. 

We didn't use that medication. i3ut that's the other 

eype of medicarim chat's used for incontinence. 

So gshe w a y  you w e r e  zryin~ EO ateack c h i s  from a 

pharmaceutical scandpcinr.  is to focus on t h e  

sphincter and not che riiadder? 

Correct 

You indicated char, Dr. Kolta reported EO you that he 

had tried to use an excernal device. Is that 

correct? 

Yeah. I believe in the note it states that he used 

an external device, but it had inflammation and 

irritation associated with it. 

90 you know wnat external device that was? 

Probably a co~ldom carheter. 

Is that referred LO as a Texas caeheter? 

Correct ~ 

90 you know when Dr. Kolta attempted to use this? 

, -  
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Q 
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Probably somerime between September 29tb, 1992 and 

December 15eh, l992. 

Would it surprise you that the only reference to 

Dr. Kolta using a Texas catheter is in 

Dr. CherukuriOs n o ~ e s  from May of 199f? 

Whop s Dr Cherukusr? 

&ior;her plnysicidr-1 who  rias tlreared T)r, Mol~a, 

I t  would noe surprise -ne :hat he had t,rieci i t  Bile 

I wasn’t aware of :E from these notes 

And you weren’~ aware of how long ago he had triea 

it? 

No. As I said, jusc based on that note, I made that 

assumption, which obviously was incorrect. 

Again, you don,L have any independeqt basis to know 

that Dr. Kolta used or atcempted to use the Texas 

cathecer other  ban whae he told you? 

No, lusr .  based or1 niseory. 

Do you. know how long ic cerms of on a daily basis 

Br, Kolta wore ~ h e  Texas cathexer? 

No c 

Did he tell you how many days he wore it in a row? 

No. 

So you don’t know if he wore it all day, every day? 

Don’ ‘1. know. 

If a skin irritation was a problem in using the 

- 
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w 
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catheter, wou;c i /  acr-,e chat ~f Dr Knlea 

restricted n i s  lise af the caeheter to a period of 

Ehe day when n~ ~ ~ c m ~ i - n e n c e  1s worse, ‘-,hac ‘chac 

wouid probably lessen the risk of irritation? 

I can‘t say, because it is variable. Some patients 

are just unable tG Eolerate the Texas catheter. And 

if you look in the history of Texas catheters, or 

condom catheters, there are all different kinds that 

have been developed over the years, because, 

generally, thev j u s t  don’t really work very well. 

So some patienLs tolerate them very well; they seay 

on f o r  days. Some 3zeients are irritated righK from 

che beginning, ; U S E  from Lhe caEheeer itself, 

irrespective of any urinary irrieation. So i 

can’t - -  I understand the question. I just dontt 

know if I can give you a reasonable answer, because 

it’s so variable with people. 

So the literature indicates that some people have 

irritation with the catheter from the minute they 

put ir. on? 

Correct 

Tbae it’s irrespeccrve of the length of time they 

put it on? 

Correct, And 1 r ,hink part of that is borne QUL from 

the fact thae. t h e r e  have been so many different 

__ 
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types of Texas cacheters produced, different kinds 

and materials and whatever. If there was one 

satisfactory kind. there would have been one. And 

chere was a pericd sf Lime about 15, 20 years ago, 

chere were a lor: of znem coming out;, a Lor. more 

activity than w e  see roday, as far as new 

developments 

Would you say char, tfie design of the cacheLer rms 

improved vastly over tne years? 

Well, there was a lot of activity, as I said, 

probably about 15 years ago or so, where there 

seemed to me there were a bunch of new ones coming 

out. I am not aware of any real new designs that 

have come out in the last five years. There may be. 

I'm just not aware of them. 

Doctor, the lase, Seneence of your first paragraph in 

December of ' 9 2  says Lhat because of the frequent 

need to urinaee ana general irrieabiiity, you were 

unable LO aeee~zd TSr, Kolta. What did you mean by 

chat? 

I don't know. I saw that when I was - -  either I was 

not interpreted when I was dictated - -  I reaily 

don't know what it means. 

Do you remember if irritability meant - -  referred to 

Dr. Kolta's mental state at that point or skin 

-___ - - 
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Weli, I would ~ S S U ~ E  : ' i l l  ~ l s l n g  ehe frequency of 

irri-eabiliEy r?f ~ l i l : - ~ ) a e ~ o n  U s m l l y  when T u s e  ~ , ? e  

term irritabiiicv wher, Z ' m  talklng aboue u r i n a t i o n  

it's frequency, urgency, a feeling Lhae you have to 

urinate. So I ' m  making the assumption that that's 

what I ' m ref e r r ing  to. 

If we can move to April of '93, because I think the 

next time you saw Dr. Kolta, again, you report that 

he was stili : nco~~ :nenc?  

*? . 1 3 r T e @ L "  

find, again, you col-d me before that with regard EO 

tne level and a n ~ o u ~ n ~  of Lnconeinence, your general 

recoiiection is itis remained conscant through 

the - -  

Correct. 

In July of '93, you saw Dr. Kolta again and you 

noted that he was still unable to work. Again, is 

that Dr. Kolta's reporting to you that he was unable 

to work? 

Correcr.. 

Is there anytfiing cnat stands out in your mind in 

Septetnher of ' 9 2  when Dr. Kolta was working and July 

of ' 9 3  when he repcrted that he was s t i l l  unable tcl 

work? 

- 
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A 

No 

Your last office entry that is part of this exhibit 

is October 1 2 ~ h .  1993? 

No, It’s November 5tb, 1993. That - -  on the same 

page Just Keep g o i x i g ,  Counsel 

Okay. So we i a v e  LWO more. With regard to October 

12eh, ’93, aEeer - -  ch,e second line where you have 

ne continues SI- % ~ e x  ana Ditropas, Shoula cnac GE 

a period thec after rhacc? i9nd is tne nexe senrence 

which - -  I’m sorry. Can you strike t h a t  whole 

thing. 

What I ’ m  zrying to figure out is should there 

have been a period after the word helps? 

Probably so. 

I want to focus on the sentence that says while 

doing any physrca, aci-ivity, walking, exercise, he 

1s toeally incone>-nent, Again, ehat’s what Dr. 

KaPt-a has reporced LO you, correct? 

Correcc 

Do you know whaz Dr. Kolt,a meant when he said that 

he was totally inconcinent? Did you have any 

discussion abour thac? 

TJsunlly when I - -  I can only interpret what I write, 

because usually when I state that somebody is 

totally incontinent, it means that they‘re losing 

_ _  
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311 their ur;r)E 3,id 'hey' re no'c; rer_airring any 1 

significanc ~ K I G L C ~ Z  ~i iririe Meaning somebody eefis 

me they're waiklng and  they are incontinene and 1 

I 

then I'll usuai;y ask chem, well, do you urinate? 

And if they say yes to me, that's a partial 

incontinence, which means they were retaining some 

urine. If they told me they're totally inconEinent 

meaning they dox't urinate, all of the urine leaks 

out  of the bladder, that's what I refer to as 

r,otaliy incorLLipenr So by implication, thae's whar 

I think I mear,. 

So LE'S your ~ecollectlon c h a t  you concluded 

Dr, KoLta was : ? c a ~ - ~ y  xnconcinenc, or dic Dr K o i t a  

tell you that '?e vas Locally inconeinenc? 

No. This is ali history. This is my talking to the 

patient. 

So in response te your question, do you urinate, 

Dr. Kolta would have told you that he was not 

urinating? 

Correct, Because all of the urine was leaking out. 

That's readijzg S e ~ w e e ~  the line, so to speak, of 

what IS there 

Okay. 

control'? 

While up anti zrsun6 walKing, correct. 

So ne w a u i d  have had zero percent bladder 
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, c _ -  

Was Dr. Kolta still wearing pads at this point? 

I believe S C .  

Do you know V J ~ ~ E  Dr EColta meant when he said that 

walking woula cause 2 1 ~ 1  KG be eoeally incontinent? 

Well, it mear,e ebat when he was walking, r_he urine 

would Peak out 

But what I want T-=? focus DX; is d l d  he ~ndicaee a m  

much walking, sr are we -,a;kino aboue merely walkins 

around his house cr cakin9 a walk around the block, 

or do you have any idea? 

No. I don't know. 

I'm trying to get an understanding of what Dr. Kolta 

would have discussed with you when he said that 

doing any physical activity rendered him totally 

incontinent. Do you know If he was unable to drive 

a car? 

I donYt know, bur. my feeling would be ~t would be 

walking, doing ;unag,nng ;acks or something to that 

effecc, I don': ehink I was referring to driving a 

car. You know, we stacea chat when he was sitting, 

he had fairly - -  you know, he had reasonable 

control. It was mostly when he was walking, up, 

standing, activities such as that. 

Do you know if he had problems when he was just 

walking from room to room in his house? 
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Q 
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Q 

The degree, Z hr"- k " o w  

Sedentary SI- ; rzz ,ns  3 c ~ i v l t i e s ,  they are 3h ' ay ;  

They seemed EO De ocay. Correct. 

Cid Dr, K O l i Z Z  s&y lci?ar he felt like he was house 

bound or couldn't get out and visit friends? 

Can' c really remember. 

Don't know. Okay. Do you have any recollection as 

to what type of activities Dr. Kolta could do 

without bein? s o z a ~ i y  I-ncontinenes - -  

Noy 

So other char: s i ~ c : - o s  ar engaging in some type or' 

sedentary acr_iv:-cy, you would expece, based 01-1 .-his 

office entry, rnat Dr. Koita would have been t o e a l l y  

incontinent doin2 anything else. Is that fair to 

say? 

Well, walking around, general movements, yes. 

Your office note doesn't indicate that the time of 

day would have made any difference in the level of 

his incontinence? 

Not at this 2oint. But I think previous notes seem 

LO indicate chat ne seemed to do worse later in the 

day, We have already Aiscussed - -  

Bus. by October af ' 993 ,  was  he totaliy incontinent 

throughouE -he day ~ r '  ye was dolng aay physical 

activity? 

- 
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i can't - -  you k p o w  L 7 u s t  can't conment, because 

i t k s  n o ~  spec;f:-ca,,v ~raced, and I can't remember. - -  

i3efendanc's Exhibit D 
marked for 
idencification.) 

Again, wizh regam EO z n i s  October r2zh  office note, 

based on whaE 3r Kclez .cold you c ~ e n ,  wouid i'c be 
fair EO say a~ < a i ~ ~  considere6 h i m s e ~ ~  - -  eo be 

totally incontinent a l l  day every day when he was 

engaged in any type of physical activity? 

MR. BARRETT: Objection. 

That"s my recollection, yes. I can't say - -  when 

you say totally incontinent, that means that all 

urine is leaking o u ~  of the bladder and a patient is 

not urinating at a l l  Whecher that - -  he did 

urinate, so ne W ~ S P ' ~  Lotally incontinent all day 

long. If he w a s  S ~ K L L ~ I ~ ~  he had some continence. 

&IC% he woul6 i ~ r ~ ~ a t ~  sc I chink ehe degree of his 

inconeinence was x-eia.ced LO zhe degree of his 

physical activity. The more active, the greater the 

loss of urine. The nore sedentary, the lesser the 

loss of urine, or maybe controlled while sitting, 

which is certainly appliea to some of Lhese notes. 

If we remove sitting as a physical activity - -  I'r, 

looking at your office note, and this is basically 

what Dr. Kolta reported. What he reported is 
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basically doing any ghysacai aceJ-vrty rendered ,%;IT 

totally incontinenr’ 

That‘s what Ehe nore states. But LO answer r;he 

question you asked before, meaning he lost urine if 

he walked five feee, I don’t know that. I just 

don‘t know. 

I‘m handing you what has been marked as Defendant‘s 

Exhibit D, wnlch is: a letter from Dr. Marshall to 

Mrs BarreLC dacec Gcrober 6th, 1993. And this 

exhibic 1s abour_ s ix  .days before you saw Dr- Kolta. 

Is chat C O ~ ~ S C K ?  

CorrecL 

N o w ,  you will agree w i ~ h  me, wonPC you, Khat 

Dr. Marshall did not mention that Dr. Koita was 

totally incontinent at that point, did he? 

MR. BARRETT: He’s not reporting on 

the exam. He‘s summarizing the case. I want to 

make that clear. 

He staces, quo~e, nis principal problem has been 

s~ressing factors ~ 

But in October o f  ‘ 9 3  when Dr. Marshall is reporting 

on Br, ICol~a’s  condii=*on, he doesn’t say chat he is 

rsotally inconkrnenL does he? 

No. He did not say that. 

He says that_ che incontinence just worsens after 

__ __ 
F I N C U N - W - C I N T  - -  THE COURT F-EPORTERS 



1 * 

*? 

3 

4 

K 
J 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Q 

A 

Q 

Dr, Kolta has ~ ~ > r k e o  lonaer hours or in the evening. 

Is ~ h a e  correc';; 

Nhere are  YOU reading z h a ~ ;  I mean, I'm noc 

doubting whar yoti' re r _ e i l i n g  me 

It's the end! of char. first paragraph Khat 

Dr. Marshall says t h a e  Dr, Kolta's inconcinence 

really becomes a principal problem when he's working 

longer hours or in ',he evening? 
i 

I 

Yes. It says that it is more of a problem, that's 

correct" 

And Dr. Marshall doesn't report that any physical 

activity causes Dr. Kolta to be totally incontinent. 

Is that correct? 

MR, RARRETT: Objection. I don't know 

if that was even aske2 of Dr. Marshall. 

I j u s t  wanE LC? know 7F Dr, Marshall 1s representlng 

'-,hat in his l e ~ ~ e r  of OctDber 6th. 

No. 

Doctor, I also wantea tc ask you about paragraph 

three of Dr. Marshall's report where he attempts to 

give some insight into Dr. Kolta's problem. And he 

says what he thinks happens is that Dr. Kolta's 

external sphincter fatigues during the day, which 

would cause him to have an increasing level of 

sercss  inconcinence ac ehe end of the day? Could 

I- 

He doesn'c meneion physical activity at all. 
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'93. And you saia that you completed a digleal 

rectal exam of Dr. Kolta. Is that correct? 

Correct. 

And that exam showed good sphincter tone? 

I'm talking about the rectal sphincter. 

So these t w c  statements wouldn't have any - -  

No relationship r_s each other. 

If WE can now ,aok a~ your November 5, '93 o f f i c e  

nece - -  frrsr .;f 3:: l e r  me ask ycu ,  dia yoii see 

Dro KolE& OrJ N@LTexnbe r  5th af ' i?37 

MR. B,WRETT: I r,h;_nk I eould be of 

some help in explaining how that note got in there. 

May I? 

MS. JOHNSON: Let me get Dr. Resnick's 

response first. 

I would presume that I may have spoken to him on the 

phone or - -  the fact that there isn't a stamp on 

this yellow sheet implies that he probably was not 

seen in the ofzice in a regular manner. 

whether this was a phone conversation or whether 

this was a - -  I saw -;im off hours. I ;ust canL= 

remember ~ 

Now, 

More recently, 1 cried e,o make a noEe chat I 

spoke with the patient on the phone, because this 
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has come .ip before. So I just don't know. 

NK. BARRETT. I think I can help you 

both. Bill Ellis had a telephone conversation on 

November 5th w r c k j  Dr Resnick. So your offize 

contacted Dr, Resnick, with my permission, to 

discuss some issues. And c h i s  was, apparently, ann 

issue that was discussed. 

MS. ITOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.  

Dr. Kolta told me in his deposition that he was - -  

that it was scressful for him to have to discontinue 

working. And that's also reflected in 

Dr. Marshall's records. Did Dr. Kolta tell you that 

he was disappointed or unhappy that he had to stop 

working? 

Yeah, He wanted to work. And Lhough it's not note6 

here, he was upset i  distressed, thar: he was not able 

to work 

Given Dr. Kolta's interest in working, is there any 

reason why you didn't suggest that he at least try 

the Texas catheter again? 

Well, I chink he's had a - -  it was irritating to 

him, and we may have talked about it, though it may 

not have been recorded, to try these different 

things, but he felt, ana I think, looking at the 

comments on November 5th, that it wasn't a viable 

___ 
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And other than his sRe-time experience w i r h   he 

Texas catheter in. - -  sometime in 1991, what would 

make it not a viable option to at least consider a 

couple years later when he's so upset about not 

being able to work? 

First of all, I don'L know if it was a one-time 

xcurrence, z ~ e  I r s l d  yoii. dor?'t know if it was 

- U S E  1991 or a the r  '::;mes, But patient's telling me 

zhar: he# w t r i . e o  L.~C 3.n.d iloesnf t 'wane ec t r y  ie a c j a l n .  

'hac '' s not arJ, ~ ~ ~ ~ m r m . ~ .  experience ~ 3. mean 1: ' vc 

seen pat;ienEs wieh sirn;lar si~ua~ions r h a c  have had 

a bad experience OE a medicaeion, and 1'11 say LO 

them, why don't you try the medication. 

No. I tried it three years ago. I'm not 

going to take it anymore. So I don't believe that's 

an abnormal response from a patient. He had a bad 

experience and doesn't want to have a second bad 

experience, 

You didxpk suggest,, :;hen, ts I)r. Kolta Enat he at 

ieasr give it anoth.er Kry? 

E  don'^ know- Z zend to - -  I recollect chat ehere 

had been some dPscussions about the use of a Texas 

catheter, tryin9 one. And I kncjw he just didn't 

want to us? one.  But I cannot state how many times 
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he tried and when he cried. 

Buc 3~ least ; - r ' s  ~ O I X  understanding at this point 

ehae 9r, K o l i : ~  relecceo c>-mr our of hand as 3, 

possible opc ion; 

That 19 corxect 

Dr. Marshall, ID 3 leteer sometime - -  I'm sorry. 

It's the October '93 letter, where he basically ran 

down a lisc of oprions for Dr. Kolta. If we co~z id  

look at that. He identified the implantation of an 

artificial spnincter as a possibility, but not 

necessarily something to be considered for 

Dr. Kolta, because 3r. Kolta's level of incontinence 

is less than che level normally considered for a 

surgical patiept for Lhis sphincter implant. Do you 

have - -  

I don't, do che sphrncLer work, b u ~  I think that's 

the subIecclve 0131-n.;0rir and i personally wouid chink 

that a sphincter w o u l E  be an option for Dr. Kclca, 

and that was discussed with him. 

want to have another operation. 

So from your perspective, the implantation of the 

sphincter is certainly a viable option for 

Dr. Kolta? 

I think so. 

And the point of ~ h 3 t  would be to help control his 

He just didn't 
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incontinence t-3 che point where he couia resEme 

active - -  an active iifestyle? 

Yeah. That would be zhe end result, yes. 

And an active iifestyie would include the ability 

work? 

Correct. 

Did you  discuss w~-i:h 3r. Kolta the collagen work 

rh.aLc's been c ~ n t  m a  3pproved by r-he FDA? 

Yesr 

to 

90 you know w h e ~  y ~ t :  3;scussed that w x z h  Dr i C 0 - t < 2 ~  

hell, when coilagen was being developed and lr w a s  

on the horizor,. However, I don't think collagen is 

useful in patients with incontinence via radical 

prostatectomy. Although it's been used in general 

experience and has failed. Although most people 

have stopped its use in that patient population, 

there are some that are continuing to use it. 

However, most of its utilization is in women with 

mconeinence, -Lqd it really hasn't been that 

zffective in IDOSL ;cad>-cal prosEatectomies. So I ' m  

nor: recommendxi? r m c  ermrrently in pa.cients as a 

form of Erea,tYi?enc Secsuse .of the very high failure 

rate 

And you're nor, recommending it for Dr. Kolta because 

of the basis for his incontinence? 

-~ -_ 
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Correce 

would you corisider 5 change in Dr. Kolta's 

medications if :iew -irugs were developed'? 

If sorneching came up s u e ,  worth a c r y .  

Dr, Marshall 9ad menr-2-aned tc Dr, Kolta ehaE he 

should be at Pease seep by a Dr. McGuire in &in 

Arbor, Michigan. Are you familiar with Dr. McGuire 

in Ann Arbor? 

Yes. He's now in Houston, Texas. He's no longer in 

Ann Arbor. But I know him well. 

Iie's moved to a warmer climate. Would Dr. McGuire's 

work be an O ~ L ~ O T L ~  

McGuire is a pioneer in r,ne use of collagen and 

still a proponenr. LE, ehe use of collagen in posc 

radical prostaEeceomy patienes. However, most 

physicians QO nor. feel 1 ~ ~ s  of value. So, again, 

that would be ar, option for him to see Dr. McGuire. 

It wouldn't be a bad idea for him LO avail himself 

of a one-time visit? 

Thar; would be  his choice, correct. 

Doctor, if we could move to the first page of 

Exhibit A, I believe it is, and you will agree that 

that's a PetLer cnac you sent to Mr. Barrett on 

Ncvernber 5eh? 

Right e 
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And you indicate that you’re discloslng materzal 

that you discussed with Mr. Barrett. Is that 

correct? 

Correct. 

What material- w a s  that? 

I assume the s f f i c s  records that I sent. 

30 you know how many times yo~l have discussed 

Dr. Kol~a’s ~ a s e  ’sc2-z~ w BarreEt; 

We discussed IL c h i s  mcrnlng. We had a discuss ion  

zasx week, rnay~e 3 ~ 0 z h e r  time. So I would say r 5 r e e  

times. 

Doctor, when I went over your records, I didn’t see 

any written opinion from you with regard to 

Dr. Kolta‘s ability to function as an 

anesthesiologist. 

opinion in that regard in this case? 

Nobody’s asked me to, 

Is it your understanding that a doctor’s role is 

eo - -  when asked, to renaer an opinion with regard 

eo ehe impairment as  opposed to disability? 

Are you going to be rendering an 

MR. BAiiRETIT: Do you underscana Ehat? 

I undersrsand r;he quesr_ion. 

feel qualified to answer it, because I’m not 

familiar with the legal implications of that. We dc 

very little work, or essentially no work, related to 

I guess I really don’t 

__ 
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disabili-r;y 33s. vJcrknian'  E compensation, in contrast 

to my orehopedic f r : e n d s ,  who deal with Et a11 L ~ E  

time. SO I reaL,y riave no experience in eha t  w h o l e  

area 

Do you feel quallfred co render an opinion waeh 

regard to Dr. Kolta's ability to work or funccion as 

an anesthesiologist? 

Only from whax he's told me; that's all. 

And Dr. Kolta has told you that he can' t work? 

That's correct. 

Has Dr. Kolta given you a description of his work as 

an anesthesiologrsc? 

Not specifically. I mean, I have an idea what 

anesthesiologfscs do. But I can't say hens told me 

specifically whae be does. By irnplicaeion, ~ t ' s  

whar: my percepL:orr LS as E O  whae a2 anesehesioiogisr 

does. 

Did Dr. Kolta cell you what physical demands are 

placed on him as an anesthesiologist? 

No, other thar, my, again, understanding of what 

anesthesiologists do. 

Did Dr. Kolta discuss any work schedules with yoii? 

No, not that I can remember. 

Did he discuss ~11th you any cf the arrangements that 

he may slave had wich hi-s group practice? 
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I know he was 

But the specific, again, I can't remember, because 1 

he had tried to work something out. 

I 

I he did want to work. 

When you say char yoiir recollection is that he tried ! 
to work somer_h:z?_g sur_,  do you mean at the time that 

he w a s  going 11. for h i s  surgery'? i I 

No. I mean posEoperaervely, after he nad his 

s "0 Y 9 e E  ̂y 

What did he eel; you, or wnar. do you recall of ar,y 

conversaclons' 
I 

It seems to me there was some question of could he 1 

have limited activity or have limited exposure to 

limited cases, that kind of thing. And I can't 

remember if it was working half a day or time limits 

that he wanted - -  and this is all recollection, to 

see if he could tailor his activities to meet his 

problem, so tc speak, related to urinary 

incontinence. 

So Dr, K01ta~s reporce6 EO you chat he has attempted 

to modify his w s r k  arrangernenes? 

As I remember 2 s ~  r;he details of which, I ~iisc. 

I 
1 eanPt &ell you, 

The reason why I want to be clear on this is because 

Cr. Kolta has told me that he never broached his 

group practice or the hospital with any modified 

1 
I 
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work arrangement 

~ O I Y Z P -  in ie 

I don‘t know ? ’ T I  I U S L  saymg what I recoliecc, 

,:hac* s ail, 

And at this point, you don’e - -  IS it fair eo say 

that you don't have an opinion with regard to Dr. 

Kolta‘s ability to function as an anesthesiologist? 

N o ,  because I - -  I’m not an anesthesiologist. 

And is that the only reason that you wouldn‘t 

feel - -  

Yeah 2 mean - -  - * - ?  -i,=L 5 ZIght. 

Okay. And if e,har;’s ‘,he basis for your neutralicy 

on, thla posft?-on,  Khat 1s because you’re riot arz 

anesthesioioglsr 1s IC fair L O  say Ehat you wonVt 

be rendering ar? opinion in this case, because I 

don’t expect thac you‘re ever going to become an 

anesthesiologise. Is that correct? 

That‘s correct. I hope not. 

You’re finisned schooling. Is that correct? 

My wife would k i l l  me. 

because there wouldn‘t be any 

MS. J O H N S O N :  I think I‘m finished, 

Doctor, if you would just give me a moment. 

That’s al; T have. Thank you. 

MR BA;aP”ZTT : I ’ m  going to - -  I don’t  

Sue in view of the subject that do th?s very ofLen 
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came up, I wanr rxhe record to show that I'm asking 

Dr. Resnick, who 1s a neucral person in this case, 

some questions on the subject that was brought up. 

Mr, Barrett; 

And just to clarify your answers, so that I might - -  

and that's the subject of the availabiliey of an 

areificial sphineizer  a s  an op~xon here, I 

understand, Dr. Rescl-ck, you personally do noe ac 

the sphincter work d~ you? 

Correct. 

Could you go into upsides and downsides, if there 

are anyI of - -  

The upside - -  

MS. JOHNSON: Prior to your answering, 

are you asking in general the upsides and downsides, 

what the medicai literature indicates, or with Dr. 

KoSta specifically? 

Well, would there be any difference? 

IPm not s u r e  there would be, 

So whacever the Iitcerat;ure indicates, would be 

equally applicable to Dr. Kolta, as any other 

patient ? 

I would think so. Upside is it could take, have a 

patient who is incontinent become continent. 

Downside is an operation. It's an artificial device 
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ehar, can fa2-l. I guess varying figures in the 

licerateare or, r h e  f a r j - u r e  rate, Meaning a f c e r  ie' s 

implanted, it's a mechanical device, so ehey wear 

out. And then there's complications with the 

operation and infection, erosion into the urethra, 

and itls undergoing an operation. 

Doctor, in connection with the failure, if, in fact, 

the person has an artificial sphincter, what does 

thae encail? Does thae entail removal of the 

n a t u r a  i ,s ph 1 rlc t e r 3 

No. It's the placement of a plastic cuff, so to 

speak, around ehe ure'chra, That's inflated and 

deflated. When itRs inflated, the urethra is 

compressed, T h e  patient has control, When i t ' s  

deflateci, the urethra opens and the patient is able 

to urinate. 

And in the event of failure, what's involved? 

The cuff can break so that the fluid that is used to 

inflate it may leak out. The reservoir that holds 

the fluid car, leak. The tubing that is used can 

kink. Thereps a valve mechanism that allows the 

Inflow and outfiow from the sphincter; that can 

fail. And as I mentioned, it can get infected or it 

can erode, because you have a euff around the 

urethra. It can erode into the urethra. 

-- 
FINCUIIJ-M4NCINI - -  THE COUXT REPORTERS 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 0  

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q 

a 

BY 

Q 

a 

B 

A 

Q 

A 

In your opinion, does Dr. Kolta have legitimate 

concerns in rejecting an artificial sphincter as a 

possible - -  as the operative procedure in this case? 

Yeah. I c n s  a concern, because it’s an operation 

with complications, and he found it distasteful, as 

I remember, eo have an artificial device pur; in him 

like that. There’s a mechanism thac sits II?, the 

scrotum. He four16 cnat diseasteful and did not ;  want 

co undergo anetner 3Derative procedure 

MR. BiWRETT: Thank you, Doccor. 

Thank you. T h a t ‘ s  3l.l I have. 

MS. JOHNSON: Doctor, just one 

follow-up question. I j u s t  want to be clear on your 

testimony from before. 

Ms. Johnson: 

From a medical standpoint, you consider the 

sphincter device a. viable option for Dr. Kolta? 

Yes, I do, 

And the complneac?Lons ehae yoex discussed, isn‘t it 

fair to say eha:: t h e r e  are complncatnons and a risk 

of failure w i ~ b  -JUSL about any surgery? 

Unfortunately, yes. 

In terms of risk, in terms of fatality, where wculd 

you rank this particular procedure? 

Fatality, you know, more probably related to the 
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anesthesia that would i3e required than t h e  operation 

icself, Complica~ion r z e e r  T t r n  noe - toeally up on 

ehe literature, D U C ,  seemingly, in ehe 10 pereenr, 

range, something like tnat, meaning infection, 

erosion, somer;hing like that, that we've talked 

about, malfunction. 

So the rate of failure, of complication, with this 

particular surgery is about 10 percent? 

I think it's 10 percent, maybe a little higher, but 

noe much higher. I En;nk tnar_'s a fair figure. 

MS JOHNSON :: Thank you,  

MR. EmBIETT': I have nothing further. 

Thank you. 

{Signature wa.8 waived. 1 
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State of Ohio, 

County of Cuyahoga. 
! SS: CERTIFICATE 

I, Barbara J .  Strahler, Notary Public in and for 

the State of Ohio, duly commissioned and qualified, do 

hereby certify Ehat ehe within named witness, 

Martin Resnick, M.C,, w a s  by me first duly sworn to 

testify Ehe truth, E h e  wnole truth, and nothing but rhe 

truth in Ehe cause afore,sard; that the ees~imony then 

given by him was by me reduced to stenotype/computer in 

the presence of said witness, afterward transcribed, and 

that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of the 

testimony so given by him as aforesaid. 

I do further certify that this deposition was 

taken at the time and place in the foregoing caption 

specified, and was completed without adjournment. 

9 do further certify &hat I am not a relative, 

counsel, or attorney or' either party, or otherwise 

interested in the even& of this action 

IN WITNESS WHEREOFv I have hereunco set my hand 

and affixed my seal GI? cffice at Cleveland, Ohio, on 

this 24th day of ~uly, 1995. 

Barbara J. serAh ler 
Notary Public in and for the State of Ohio. 
My commission Fxpires  October 31, 1993. 


